CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 6, 2021 — OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, July 6, 2021, to order at 7:05 p.m. Present
were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek, MaryAnn Hallstein and Thomas
Dierberger. Also present was City Administrator Brian Hagen, City Attorney Jay Squires, City Engineer
Justin Messner, and Administrative Intern Grant MacFarlane. Guests included Kelly and Catalin Dima of
Influence Church, John Ganfield of 10171 Beebe Lane, and Sam Jones of Crow River News.

Approval of Agenda:

Kauffman requested to move Resolution 07-06-21-52 from the agenda to new business for discussion.
Kauffman also requested to add the City’s emergency order to new business for discussion.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda as amended, seconded by Zajicek. Motion carried
unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Zajicek to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Dierberger.
a. Approve Minutes of June 15, 2021 City Council Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

> Claims $196,063.03
> Payroll $ 11,655.43
> PIR taxes & Exp $ 4,194.08
> Other Claims $ 2,668.05
» Total Claims $214,580.59

Res No 07-06-21-48 — Accepting Donation from Hanover Lions

Res No 07-06-21-49 — Accepting Donation of Memorial Bench

Res No 07-06-21-50 — Approving Temp. Liquor License for Hanover Lions

Res No 07-06-21-51 — Approving Purchase of Park Board Event Signage

Res No 07-06-21-53 — Approving Purchase of Turnout Gear Jacket

Res No 07-06-21-54 — Appointing Jake Bjorneberg to the Fire Department

Res No 07-06-21-57 — Approving Temp. Liquor License for Hanover Athletic Association
j. Ord. 2021-03 — Amending Chpt. 3 Related to Outdoor Liquor Sales

Motion carried unanimously.

-~ oTKQa o o

Citizen’s Forum

Influence Church — City Rental Fee Waiver Request
Catalin Dima explained that Influence Church provides youth activities, finance classes, and other services
to residents and that they would like to receive a reduced price from the City to utilize its facilities for
these activities.

Kauffman asked how often Catalin Dima believed Influence Church would be using the City facilities.
Catalin Dima stated that the activities can be on a weekly or monthly schedule, but that they would likely
need the facilities once a week.

Zajieck asked how far in advance that they would be scheduling and renting for events. Catalin Dima
explained that they would schedule events roughly three months in advance and that they would likely
rent the facilities on Wednesday evenings.



Kauffman asked how many people that they expected to attend their events. Kelly Dima responded that
they expect 30 — 40 kids for their first events with growing numbers after.

Council stated that they would like more time to consider the request.

Public Hearing

Continued Nuisance Hearing — 11572 Meadowbrook Ave NE
Hagen stated that the property has made no major progress on its clean-up in the time since the last update
was provided. Kauffman suggested sending another letter.

Hagen asked Squires about the process and timeline for taking legal action. Squires responded that it
would be a month’s long process due to how busy the courts are currently.

Hagen suggested continuing to ask that the property be cleaned until snowfall and taking legal action if
the clean-up had not occurred by winter. Kauffman stated that he is against legal action and that he fears
how doing so may affect other properties in the future.

Kauffman suggested including site photos in the next letter and stated that he would be willing to meet
with the property owner to discuss the situation in the future.

Council said that they would like to revisit the topic once again next month. Squires stated that the next
letter could explain the potential steps that the City may take with the property moving forward. Squires
explained that such steps included using court authority to abate the nuisance or administrative authority
to issue a fine.
MOTION by Hallstein to continue the property updates, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Unfinished Business
None

New Business

Res No 07-06-21-55 — Approving Variance for 10171 Beebee Lake Rd Ne
Hagen explained that the variance was for an accessory building to the front of the home. Hagen stated
that the Planning Commission had recommended approval of the variance at their most recent meeting.
MOTION by Warpula to approve Resolution No 07-06-21-55, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Res No 07-06-21-56 — Approving WSB Proposal for Settlers Park Master Plan
MacFarlane stated that the Park Dedication Fee Study had identified a bandshell as a possible new amenity
for Hanover. MacFarlane stated that he was assigned the task of creating a master plan for Settlers Park
to identify a location for this bandshell. MacFarlane added that the master plan was also to help the City
determine what it wanted to do with the two-acre plot of land adjacent to Settlers Park.

MacFarlane showed the proposed master plan to council. MacFarlane stated that the master plan included
a bandshell, a new park shelter, an expansion of the parking lot between Settlers Park and the proposed
site, and the moving of a berm. MacFarlane also explained that the existing shelter would remain in place
with the current proposed plan, but that the kitchen would be removed and the bathrooms would be
expanded to meet ADA compliance.



Hallstein questioned if the cost of the project would be worth the use of a bandshell. Hallstein expressed
that she was unsure if the project would be worth the money spent.

Zajicek stated that he liked the idea of expanding Settlers Park and moving the berm. Zajicek further stated
that he was unsure about adding new bathrooms and expanding the parking lot.

Kauffman expressed that he would like to have a joint meeting with the Park Board to discuss the project
further.

Zajicek stated that he wanted to keep the kitchen in the current shelter.

Dierberger asked if the City had been in contact with other cities to inquire about required power for the
bandshell. Hagen stated that the City has knowledge of what bands would need, and that it would run
electricity to the bandshell to accommodate performers.

Zajicek said that he would like the berm to be pushed back regardless of the rest of the master plan,
Warpula agreed.

Council asked Hagen to schedule a joint meeting between City Council and Park Board.
MOTION by Zajicek to table Resolution 07-06-21-56, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Review: Wright County Cooperative Agreement for CSAH 19 Project
Hagen explained that the Corridor Study was completed and that members of the public were now
becoming aware of the potential roadway project. Hagen stated that the cooperative agreement would
allow the City to take control of managing the project and to begin public outreach sooner than Wright
County would. Hagen added that this would allow the City to hear concerns from residents earlier in the
design process.

Hagen explained that the City would incur upfront costs with this agreement, but that it would invoice the
County soon after.

Kauffman asked if the County would be receiving any Federal funding for the project. Hagen stated that
the County would not, but that the City would apply for grants.

Zajicek expressed that he did not like the current plan as drawn and that he believed the traffic in Hanover
was not bad. Hagen explained that the design showcased in the Corridor Study was an early concept
drawing and that its purpose was to solely display the need for improvements based on current and
projected traffic patterns. Zajicek stated that he understood this but that he ultimately did not like the
dumbbell approach as shown.

Council stated that they liked the idea of the City gaining control of the project through the Cooperative
Agreement, but would like the attorney to review the contract and build in milestones through the project
where it could be stopped.

August 3, 2021 Council Meeting Date Change (previously adjusted to the 4t)



Hagen suggested that the previously adjusted City Council meeting date of August 4, 2021 be moved to
August 2, 2021. Hagen stated that this meeting would involve the pinning of 9 volunteer firefighters that
had completed their probations.

MOTION to change Council Meeting Date to August 2, 2021 by Hallstein, seconded by Warpula. Motion
carried unanimously.

2022 Preliminary Budget — Draft 1
Hagen shared that the biggest adjustment to City revenue identified in the 2022 preliminary budget was
through building permits. Hagen stated that revenue from building permits would be increasing from
$150,000 in 2021 to $175,000 in 2022.

Hagen explained that changes to City expenditures included staff wages. Hagen stated that the biggest
change was the consideration of a potential 4™ full time Public Works employee that would be be hired in
April 2022. Hagen further explained that the edition of a 4™ full time employee would result in the removal
of the summer-help position and removal of weekly contracted city hall cleanings.

Hallstein stated that she wanted more information from Public Works before committing to hiring a new
full-time member. Hallstein asked if she could receive a list of pros and cons on the subject.

Zajicek added that the City has gained no new roads or streets in the time since a 3" full-time Public
Works employee was hired and that three employees has been enough so far. Zajicek asked if he could
receive overtime reports from Public Works.

Warpula added that he was unsure of how four Public Works employees would stay busy in the winter
months.

Hagen then explained that the budget reflected a slight levy increase of $30,000. Hagen added that the
report also reflected a tax capacity increase assumed at 250,000. Estimated tax rate would decrease by
2%.

Discussion: Outdoor Restaurant Patios
Kauffman stated that he would like a timeline for restaurants to get their site plans to the City.

Kauffman asked how many parking spots were lost at River Inn due to the addition of their patio. Hagen
stated that parking is their biggest issue and that he has informed the owners of River Inn about this.

Hallstein said that the City must see good faith efforts for restaurants to continue using patio space. Squires
stated that he was worried about allowing patios while the temporary agreement had ended.

Dierberger asked for a timeline moving forward. Hagen stated that a clear site plan was needed and that
it can take 2-3 months from when the application is submitted through final Council consideration.
Kauffman suggested giving restaurants until August or September to finish a site plan.

Hagen clarified that Council was asking for site plans to be submitted to be reviewed at the September
Planning Commission meeting with the caveat that patio usage would cease in September if no plan had
been submitted. Council expressed their consensus agreement.

Discussion: Hanover Emergency Order



Kauffman asked for the status of the Hanover Emergency Order. Squires stated that the order ended with
the Governor’s lifting of the State Emergency.

Resolution 07-06-21-52 — Approving Interfund Loan for Fire Engine
Hagen stated that in 2020 the City estimated a need for roughly $415,000 in loan money for the fire engine
and that the interfund interest rate would start at 1%. Hagen added that the final price for the fire engine
was $812,000 and that the City had received $37,000 in donations. Final loan amount is $270,900.94 and
would be paid back over 10 years.

Hallstein stated that she believed that a 2% interest rate had been previously agreed to. Council agreed
and asked that the interest rate be changed to reflect this, as well as an option to adjust interest rate
annually.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve Res 07-06-21-52 with changes, seconded by Dierberger. Motion
carried unanimously.

Reports
Hagen
e Provided an update on the 500 Kadler Ave property. Hagen explained that the City expects the
property to pave their driveway, but that the completion date has been pushed back numerous times
by the homeowners. Hagen added that the City has escrow money from the property to complete
the requirements should they fail to do so.
e A rresident suggested adding a food fridge for farmers and home gardeners to put excess produce
in as free produce for the community. Hagen recommended that they use a local food shelf. Council
agreed that they should utilize local Hanover services to distribute their excess produce.

Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 9:51 p.m., seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



